

**OHIO**

**House**

**of**

**Representatives**

**JOURNAL**

**CORRECTED VERSION**  
**TUESDAY, DECEMBER 13, 2005**

ONE HUNDRED SEVENTEENTH DAY  
Hall of the House of Representatives, Columbus, Ohio  
**Tuesday, December 13, 2005 at 11:00 o'clock a.m.**

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

Prayer was offered by Pastor Art Haimerl of the Ascension Lutheran Church in Columbus, Ohio, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.

The journal of the previous legislative day was read and approved.

The following guests of the House of Representatives were recognized by Speaker Husted prior to the commencement of business:

The Greeneview High School boys soccer team received H.R. No. 119, presented by Representative Widener-84th district.

The LaSalle High School boys cross country team received H.R. No. 133, presented by Representative Blessing-29th district.

Jean McClintock, a guest of Representative Collier-90th district.

#### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

The following bills were introduced:

**H. B. No. 445**-Representatives Webster, Kilbane.

To amend section 4757.30 of the Revised Code to prohibit independent marriage and family therapists from diagnosing and treating a mental and emotional disorder without supervision.

**H. B. No. 446**-Representatives Hood, Reidelbach, Brinkman, Latta, Peterson, Gibbs, Evans, D., Hoops, McGregor, J., Chandler, Carano, Buehrer, Faber, Law, Fende, Garrison.

To amend section 319.302 of the Revised Code to extend the ten per cent real property tax rollback to certain land used for the commercial production of timber.

Said bills were considered the first time.

#### REPORTS OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEES

Representative Setzer submitted the following report:

The Committee of Conference to which the matters of difference between the two houses were referred on Sub. H.B. 107, Representative Setzer - et al.,

having had the same under consideration, recommends to the respective houses as follows:

The bill as passed by the Senate with the following amendments:

Delete lines 89 through 333

In line 1 of the title, delete the comma and insert "and"

In line 3 of the title, delete everything after "Assembly"

Delete line 4 of the title

In line 11 of the title, delete the semicolon and insert "and"

In line 13 of the title, delete "; and"

Delete line 14 of the title

In line 15 of the title, delete everything before the period

Managers on the Part of the House of Representatives	Managers on the Part of the Senate
/s/ <u>ARLENE J. SETZER</u> ARLENE J. SETZER	/s/ <u>JOY PADGETT</u> JOY PADGETT
<hr/> JOHN M. SCHLICHTER	/s/ <u>RANDY GARDNER</u> RANDY GARDNER
/s/ <u>KENNETH A. CARANO</u> KENNETH A. CARANO	<hr/> TERESA FEDOR

The question being, "Shall the report of the committee of Conference be agreed to?"

The yeas and nays were taken and resulted - yeas 92, nays 2, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were: Representatives

Allen	Aslanides	Barrett	Beatty
Blessing	Bocchieri	Book	Brinkman
Brown	Bubp	Buehrer	Calvert
Carano	Carmichael	Cassell	Chandler
Coley	Collier	Core	Daniels
DeBose	DeGeeter	DeWine	Dolan
Domenick	Driehaus	Evans C.	Evans D.
Faber	Fende	Flowers	Garrison
Gibbs	Gilb	Hagan	Hartnett
Harwood	Hoops	Hughes	Key
Kilbane	Koziura	Latta	Law
Martin	Mason	McGregor J.	McGregor R.
Miller	Mitchell	Oelslager	Otterman
Patton S.	Patton T.	Perry	Peterson
Raga	Rausen	Redfern	Reidelbach
Reinhard	Sayre	Schaffer	Schlichter
Schneider	Seaver	Seitz	Setzer
Skindell	Smith G.	Smith S.	Stewart D.
Stewart J.	Sykes	Taylor	Trakas
Uecker	Ujvagi	Wagner	Wagoner
Walcher	Webster	White	Widener

Widowfield  
Woodard

Willamowski  
Yates

Williams  
Yuko

Wolpert  
Husted-92.

Representatives Fessler and Hood voted in the negative-2.

The report of the committee of Conference was agreed to.

### BILLS FOR THIRD CONSIDERATION

**Sub. H. B. No. 397**-Representatives Hagan, Collier, Law, Harwood, Schaffer, Cassell, DeBose, Domenick.

To amend sections 3714.01, 3714.02, 3714.03, 3714.04, 3714.05, 3714.06, 3714.07, 3714.071, 3714.073, 3714.09, 3714.11, 3714.12, 3714.13, 3734.281, 3734.57, 3745.04, 3745.05, and 3745.06 and to enact sections 3714.051, 3714.052, 3714.053, 3714.061, 3714.062, 3714.081, 3714.082, 3714.083, 3714.101, and 3714.20 of the Revised Code to revise the statutes governing construction and demolition debris facilities and to declare an emergency, was taken up for consideration the third time.

The question being, "Shall the emergency clause stand as part of the bill?"

Representative Hagan moved to amend as follows:

In line 372, delete "or" and insert an underlined comma; after "scenic" insert ", or recreational"

In lines 917 and 931, delete "an initial" and insert "a"

The question being, "Shall the motion to amend be agreed to?"

The yeas and nays were taken and resulted - yeas 94, nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were: Representatives

Allen	Aslanides	Barrett	Beatty
Blessing	Boccieri	Book	Brinkman
Brown	Bubp	Buehrer	Calvert
Carano	Carmichael	Cassell	Chandler
Coley	Collier	Core	Daniels
DeBose	DeGeeter	DeWine	Dolan
Domenick	Driehaus	Evans C.	Evans D.
Faber	Fende	Fessler	Flowers
Garrison	Gibbs	Gilb	Hagan
Hartnett	Harwood	Hood	Hoops
Hughes	Key	Kilbane	Koziura
Latta	Law	Martin	Mason
McGregor J.	McGregor R.	Miller	Mitchell
Oelslager	Otterman	Patton S.	Patton T.
Perry	Peterson	Raga	Rausсен
Redfern	Reidelbach	Reinhard	Sayre
Schaffer	Schlichter	Schneider	Seaver
Seitz	Setzer	Skindell	Smith G.
Smith S.	Stewart D.	Stewart J.	Sykes

Taylor	Trakas	Uecker	Ujvagi
Wagner	Wagoner	Walcher	Webster
White	Widener	Widowfield	Willamowski
Williams	Wolpert	Woodard	Yates
Yuko			Husted-94.

The motion was agreed to and the bill so amended.

The question recurring, "Shall the emergency clause stand as part of the bill?"

The yeas and nays were taken and resulted - yeas 90, nays 4, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were: Representatives

Allen	Aslanides	Barrett	Beatty
Blessing	Bocchieri	Book	Brown
Bubp	Buehrer	Calvert	Carano
Carmichael	Cassell	Chandler	Coley
Collier	Core	Daniels	DeBose
DeGeeter	DeWine	Dolan	Domenick
Driehaus	Evans C.	Evans D.	Faber
Fende	Flowers	Garrison	Gibbs
Gilb	Hagan	Hartnett	Harwood
Hoops	Hughes	Key	Kilbane
Koziura	Latta	Law	Martin
Mason	McGregor J.	McGregor R.	Miller
Mitchell	Oelslager	Otterman	Patton S.
Patton T.	Perry	Peterson	Raga
Raussen	Redfern	Reidelbach	Reinhard
Sayre	Schaffer	Schlichter	Schneider
Seaver	Seitz	Setzer	Skindell
Smith G.	Stewart D.	Stewart J.	Sykes
Taylor	Trakas	Uecker	Ujvagi
Wagner	Wagoner	Walcher	Webster
White	Widener	Widowfield	Willamowski
Williams	Wolpert	Woodard	Yates
Yuko			Husted-90.

Representatives Brinkman, Fessler, Hood, and Smith S. voted in the negative-4.

Having received a constitutional majority, the emergency clause stood as part of the bill.

The question being, "Shall the bill pass as an emergency measure?"

Representative Harwood moved to amend as follows:

In line 503, delete "(1)"

Delete lines 509 through 518

Delete lines 2415 through 2475

In line 2476, delete "4." and insert "3."

In line 2485, delete "5." and insert "4."

The question being, "Shall the motion to amend be agreed to?"

Representative Flowers moved that the motion be laid on the table.

The question being, "Shall the motion to amend be laid on the table?"

The yeas and nays were taken and resulted - yeas 53, nays 41, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were: Representatives

Aslanides	Blessing	Bubp	Buehrer
Calvert	Carmichael	Coley	Collier
Core	Daniels	DeWine	Dolan
Evans C.	Evans D.	Faber	Flowers
Gibbs	Gilb	Hagan	Hood
Hoops	Hughes	Kilbane	Latta
Martin	McGregor J.	McGregor R.	Patton T.
Peterson	Raga	Rausen	Reidelbach
Reinhard	Schaffer	Schlichter	Schneider
Seaver	Seitz	Setzer	Smith G.
Stewart J.	Taylor	Trakas	Wagner
Wagoner	Walcher	Webster	White
Widener	Widowfield	Willamowski	Wolpert
			Husted-53.

Those who voted in the negative were: Representatives

Allen	Barrett	Beatty	Bocchieri
Book	Brinkman	Brown	Carano
Cassell	Chandler	DeBose	DeGeeter
Domenick	Driehaus	Fende	Fessler
Garrison	Hartnett	Harwood	Key
Koziura	Law	Mason	Miller
Mitchell	Oelsluger	Otterman	Patton S.
Perry	Redfern	Sayre	Skindell
Smith S.	Stewart D.	Sykes	Uecker
Ujvagi	Williams	Woodard	Yates
			Yuko-41.

The motion to amend was laid on the table.

The question recurring, "Shall the bill pass as an emergency measure?"

Representative Law moved to amend as follows:

In line 377, delete "and"

In line 378, after "establishment" insert ", and any other place of public accommodation"

In line 383, after "(5)" insert "Place of public accommodation" has the same meaning as in section 4112.01 of the Revised Code.

(6)"

In line 420, delete "one" and insert "five"

In line 468, delete "five hundred" and insert "one thousand"; delete "unless"

Delete line 469 and insert "or, if the director or a board of health determines that five hundred feet is adequate, within five hundred feet of an occupied dwelling. However, division (C)(9) of this section does not apply if written permission is given by the owner of the occupied dwelling."

In line 503, delete "(1)"

Delete lines 509 through 518

Delete lines 2415 through 2475

In line 2476, delete "4." and insert "3."

In line 2485, delete "5." and insert "4."

The question being, "Shall the motion to amend be agreed to?"

On motion of Representative Flowers, the House recessed.

The House met pursuant to recess.

Representative Flowers moved that the motion be laid on the table.

The question being, "Shall the motion to amend be laid on the table?"

The yeas and nays were taken and resulted - yeas 49, nays 44, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were: Representatives

Aslanides	Blessing	Bubp	Buehrer
Calvert	Carmichael	Coley	Collier
Core	Daniels	DeWine	Dolan
Evans C.	Evans D.	Faber	Flowers
Gibbs	Gilb	Hagan	Hoops
Hughes	Kilbane	Latta	Martin
McGregor J.	McGregor R.	Peterson	Raga
Raussen	Reinhard	Schaffer	Schlichter
Seaver	Seitz	Setzer	Smith G.
Stewart J.	Taylor	Trakas	Uecker
Wagner	Walcher	Webster	White
Widener	Widowfield	Willamowski	Wolpert
			Husted-49.

Those who voted in the negative were: Representatives

Allen	Barrett	Beatty	Bocchieri
Book	Brinkman	Brown	Carano
Cassell	Chandler	DeBose	DeGeeter
Domenick	Driehaus	Fende	Fessler
Garrison	Hartnett	Harwood	Hood
Key	Koziura	Law	Mason
Miller	Mitchell	Oelslager	Otterman
Patton S.	Patton T.	Perry	Redfern

Reidelbach	Sayre	Schneider	Skindell
Smith S.	Sykes	Ujvagi	Wagoner
Williams	Woodard	Yates	Yuko-44.

The motion to amend was laid on the table.

The question recurring, "Shall the bill pass as an emergency measure?"

Representative Harwood moved to amend as follows:

Between lines 2433 and 2434, insert:

"(5) The use of the property, on which the facility is proposed to be located, for a construction and demolition debris facility complied with any applicable zoning requirements at the time the application was submitted."

The question being, "Shall the motion to amend be agreed to?"

Representative Flowers moved that the motion be laid on the table.

The question being, "Shall the motion to amend be laid on the table?"

The yeas and nays were taken and resulted - yeas 54, nays 40, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were: Representatives

Aslanides	Blessing	Bubp	Buehrer
Calvert	Carmichael	Coley	Collier
Core	Daniels	DeWine	Dolan
Evans C.	Evans D.	Faber	Flowers
Gibbs	Gilb	Hagan	Hood
Hoops	Hughes	Kilbane	Latta
Martin	McGregor J.	McGregor R.	Patton T.
Peterson	Raga	Rausen	Reidelbach
Reinhard	Schaffer	Schlichter	Schneider
Seaver	Seitz	Setzer	Smith G.
Stewart J.	Taylor	Trakas	Uecker
Wagner	Wagoner	Walcher	Webster
White	Widener	Widowfield	Willamowski
Wolpert			Husted-54.

Those who voted in the negative were: Representatives

Allen	Barrett	Beatty	Bocchieri
Book	Brinkman	Brown	Carano
Cassell	Chandler	DeBose	DeGeeter
Domenick	Driehaus	Fende	Fessler
Garrison	Hartnett	Harwood	Key
Koziura	Law	Mason	Miller
Mitchell	Oelslager	Otterman	Patton S.
Perry	Redfern	Sayre	Skindell
Smith S.	Stewart D.	Sykes	Ujvagi
Williams	Woodard	Yates	Yuko-40.

The motion to amend was laid on the table.

The question recurring, "Shall the bill pass as an emergency measure?"

The yeas and nays were taken and resulted - yeas 91, nays 3, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were: Representatives

Allen	Aslanides	Barrett	Beatty
Blessing	Bocchieri	Book	Brinkman
Brown	Bubp	Buehrer	Calvert
Carano	Carmichael	Cassell	Chandler
Coley	Collier	Core	Daniels
DeBose	DeGeeter	DeWine	Dolan
Domenick	Driehaus	Evans C.	Evans D.
Faber	Fende	Fessler	Flowers
Garrison	Gibbs	Gilb	Hagan
Hartnett	Harwood	Hoops	Hughes
Key	Kilbane	Koziura	Latta
Law	Martin	Mason	McGregor J.
McGregor R.	Miller	Mitchell	Oelslager
Otterman	Patton S.	Patton T.	Perry
Peterson	Raga	Rausen	Redfern
Reidelbach	Reinhard	Sayre	Schaffer
Schlichter	Schneider	Seaver	Seitz
Setzer	Skindell	Smith G.	Smith S.
Stewart D.	Stewart J.	Taylor	Uecker
Ujvagi	Wagner	Wagoner	Walcher
Webster	White	Widener	Widowfield
Williamowski	Williams	Wolpert	Woodard
Yates	Yuko		Husted-91.

Representatives Hood, Sykes, and Trakas voted in the negative-3.

The bill having received the required constitutional majority, passed as an emergency measure.

Representative Hagan moved to amend the title as follows:

Add the names: "Book, Brown, Carano, Chandler, Evans, C., Evans, D., Flowers, McGregor, J., Miller, Oelslager, Patton, S., Peterson, Seitz, Setzer, Smith, G., Stewart, J., Uecker, Webster, Williams, Yates."

The motion was agreed to and the title so amended.

The title as amended was agreed to.

**Sub. H. B. No. 145**-Representatives Seaver, Evans, D., Reinhard, Evans, C., Setzer, Raga, Wolpert, Flowers, Reidelbach, Chandler, Fende.

To amend sections 2935.01, 2935.03, and 3737.33 and to enact sections 109.791 and 505.382 of the Revised Code to give townships and joint fire districts authority to confer certain investigative and arrest powers upon some officers in their fire departments and to require the Ohio Fire Academy, in conjunction with the Ohio Peace Officer Training Academy, to conduct a fire investigative law enforcement course, was taken up for consideration the third time.

The question being, "Shall the bill pass?"

Representative Seaver moved to amend as follows:

In line 647, delete "composites are" and insert "composite is"; delete "versions" and insert "version"; delete "those sections" and insert "that section"

In line 648, delete "those sections" and insert "that section"

The question being, "Shall the motion to amend be agreed to?"

The motion was agreed to without objection.

The question being, "Shall the bill as amended pass?"

The yeas and nays were taken and resulted - yeas 81, nays 13, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were: Representatives

Allen	Aslanides	Barrett	Blessing
Brown	Bubp	Buehrer	Calvert
Carano	Carmichael	Cassell	Chandler
Coley	Collier	Core	Daniels
DeBose	DeGeeter	DeWine	Dolan
Domenick	Driehaus	Evans C.	Evans D.
Faber	Fende	Fessler	Flowers
Garrison	Gibbs	Gilb	Hagan
Hartnett	Harwood	Hughes	Kilbane
Koziura	Latta	Law	Martin
McGregor J.	McGregor R.	Miller	Mitchell
Oelslager	Otterman	Patton T.	Perry
Peterson	Raga	Raussen	Reidelbach
Reinhard	Sayre	Schaffer	Schlichter
Schneider	Seaver	Seitz	Setzer
Skindell	Smith G.	Stewart D.	Stewart J.
Taylor	Uecker	Ujvagi	Wagner
Wagoner	Walcher	Webster	White
Widener	Widowfield	Willamowski	Williams
Wolpert	Woodard	Yates	Yuko
			Husted-81.

Those who voted in the negative were: Representatives

Beatty	Bocchieri	Book	Brinkman
Hood	Hoops	Key	Mason
Patton S.	Redfern	Smith S.	Sykes
			Trakas-13.

The bill passed.

Representative Seaver moved to amend the title as follows:

Add the names: "Allen, Aslanides, Blessing, DeBose, Domenick, Hughes, Latta, McGregor, J., Patton, T., Stewart, D., Uecker, Wagoner, Walcher, Widowfield."

The motion was agreed to and the title so amended.

The title as amended was agreed to.

**H. B. No. 231**-Representatives Mason, McGregor, Otterman, Allen, Brown, Chandler, Williams, Carano, S. Smith, Boccieri, Fende, Driehaus, Ujvagi, Harwood, Oelslager, C. Evans, Key, S. Patton, DeBose, Collier, Reidelbach, Yuko, Beatty.

To amend section 2909.21 and to enact section 2909.081 of the Revised Code to prohibit a person from knowingly discharging a laser into the cockpit of an aircraft, was taken up for consideration the third time.

The question being, "Shall the bill pass?"

Representative Mason moved to amend as follows:

In line 10, delete "Whoever" and insert:

"(B) Whoever"

In line 13, delete "(B)" and insert "(C)"

The question being, "Shall the motion to amend be agreed to?"

The motion was agreed to without objection.

The question being, "Shall the bill as amended pass?"

The yeas and nays were taken and resulted - yeas 94, nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were: Representatives

Allen	Aslanides	Barrett	Beatty
Blessing	Boccieri	Book	Brinkman
Brown	Bubp	Buehrer	Calvert
Carano	Carmichael	Cassell	Chandler
Coley	Collier	Core	Daniels
DeBose	DeGeeter	DeWine	Dolan
Domenick	Driehaus	Evans C.	Evans D.
Faber	Fende	Fessler	Flowers
Garrison	Gibbs	Gilb	Hagan
Hartnett	Harwood	Hood	Hoops
Hughes	Key	Kilbane	Koziura
Latta	Law	Martin	Mason
McGregor J.	McGregor R.	Miller	Mitchell
Oelslager	Otterman	Patton S.	Patton T.
Perry	Peterson	Raga	Raussen
Redfern	Reidelbach	Reinhard	Sayre
Schaffer	Schlichter	Schneider	Seaver
Seitz	Setzer	Skindell	Smith G.
Smith S.	Stewart D.	Stewart J.	Sykes
Taylor	Trakas	Uecker	Ujvagi
Wagner	Wagoner	Walcher	Webster
White	Widener	Widowfield	Willamowski
Williams	Wolpert	Woodard	Yates
Yuko			Husted-94.

The bill passed.

Representative Mason moved to amend the title as follows:

Add the names: "Barrett, Blessing, Book, Buehrer, Cassell, Coley, DeGeeter, Domenick, Flowers, Garrison, Gibbs, Gilb, Hartnett, Hoops, Hughes, Latta, Law, Mitchell, Patton, T., Perry, Peterson, Raussen, Sayre, Schaffer, Schneider, Seaver, Skindell, Smith, G., Stewart, D., Stewart, J., Sykes, Walcher, Willamowski, Woodard, Yates."

The motion was agreed to and the title so amended.

The title as amended was agreed to.

**Sub. H. B. No. 259**-Representatives Wagner, McGregor, J., Martin, Evans, C., Fende, Bulp, Wagoner, Seaver, Evans, D., Setzer, Hagan, Harwood, Gilb, Wolpert, Distel, Willamowski, Collier, Latta, Faber, Brown, Aslanides, Uecker, Allen, Perry, Mason, Hughes.

To amend section 2921.38 of the Revised Code to prohibit a person, with intent to harass, annoy, threaten, or alarm a law enforcement officer, from causing or attempting to cause the law enforcement officer to come into contact with a bodily substance and to prohibit any person from engaging in the same action with respect to any person when the person is a knowing carrier of certain viruses or bacteria, was taken up for consideration the third time.

The question being, "Shall the bill pass?"

The yeas and nays were taken and resulted - yeas 94, nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were: Representatives

Allen	Aslanides	Barrett	Beatty
Blessing	Bocchieri	Book	Brinkman
Brown	Bulp	Buehrer	Calvert
Carano	Carmichael	Cassell	Chandler
Coley	Collier	Core	Daniels
DeBose	DeGeeter	DeWine	Dolan
Domenick	Driehaus	Evans C.	Evans D.
Faber	Fende	Fessler	Flowers
Garrison	Gibbs	Gilb	Hagan
Hartnett	Harwood	Hood	Hoops
Hughes	Key	Kilbane	Koziura
Latta	Law	Martin	Mason
McGregor J.	McGregor R.	Miller	Mitchell
Oelslager	Otterman	Patton S.	Patton T.
Perry	Peterson	Raga	Raussen
Redfern	Reidelbach	Reinhard	Sayre
Schaffer	Schlichter	Schneider	Seaver
Seitz	Setzer	Skindell	Smith G.
Smith S.	Stewart D.	Stewart J.	Sykes
Taylor	Trakas	Uecker	Ujvagi
Wagner	Wagoner	Walcher	Webster
White	Widener	Widowfield	Willamowski

Williams  
Yuko

Wolpert

Woodard

Yates  
Husted-94.

The bill passed.

Representative Wagner moved to amend the title as follows:

Add the names: "Blessing, Daniels, DeBose, DeGeeter, Domenick, Fessler, Flowers, Gibbs, Law, Oelslager, Otterman, Patton, T., Reidelbach, Schaffer, Schlichter, Schneider, Smith, G., Stewart, J., Taylor, Williams."

The motion was agreed to and the title so amended.

The title as amended was agreed to.

**H. B. No. 296**-Representatives Buehrer, Latta, Brinkman, Hagan, Aslanides, Setzer, Seaver, Hood, Kearns, Yates, Mitchell, Garrison.

To amend sections 1531.01, 1533.10, and 1533.111 and to enact section 1533.102 of the Revised Code to provide for the issuance of apprentice hunting licenses and apprentice fur taker permits and to enable persons who are sixteen or seventeen years of age to obtain youth hunting licenses and youth fur taker permits, was taken up for consideration the third time.

The question being, "Shall the bill pass?"

The yeas and nays were taken and resulted - yeas 91, nays 3, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were: Representatives

Allen	Aslanides	Barrett	Beatty
Blessing	Bocieri	Book	Brown
Bubp	Buehrer	Calvert	Carano
Carmichael	Cassell	Chandler	Coley
Collier	Core	Daniels	DeBose
DeGeeter	DeWine	Dolan	Domenick
Driehaus	Evans C.	Evans D.	Faber
Fende	Fessler	Flowers	Garrison
Gibbs	Gilb	Hagan	Hartnett
Harwood	Hood	Hoops	Hughes
Key	Kilbane	Koziura	Latta
Law	Martin	Mason	McGregor J.
McGregor R.	Miller	Mitchell	Oelslager
Otterman	Patton S.	Patton T.	Perry
Peterson	Raga	Raussen	Redfern
Reidelbach	Reinhard	Sayre	Schaffer
Schlichter	Schneider	Seaver	Seitz
Setzer	Skindell	Smith G.	Stewart D.
Stewart J.	Taylor	Trakas	Uecker
Ujvagi	Wagner	Wagoner	Walcher
Webster	White	Widener	Widowfield
Willamowski	Williams	Wolpert	Woodard
Yates	Yuko		Husted-91.

Representatives Brinkman, Smith S., and Sykes voted in the negative-3.

The bill passed.

Representative Buehrer moved to amend the title as follows:

Add the names: "Blessing, Boccieri, Book, Bulp, Carano, Cassell, Coley, Core, Dolan, Domenick, Evans, C., Evans, D., Faber, Fende, Fessler, Gibbs, Gilb, Harwood, Hoops, Key, Law, Martin, McGregor, J., McGregor, R., Oelslager, Otterman, Patton, T., Perry, Peterson, Raga, Reinhard, Sayre, Schaffer, Schlichter, Schneider, Seitz, Stewart, D., Taylor, Uecker, Wagoner, Webster, White, Willamowski, Yuko."

Remove the names: "Brinkman, Mitchell, Yates."

The motion was agreed to and the title so amended.

The title as amended was agreed to.

**H. B. No. 421**-Representatives Beatty, Reidelbach, Allen, Redfern, Ujvagi, Cassell, Harwood, Brown, Healy, Oelslager, Latta, McGregor, J., Miller, Gilb, Boccieri, Perry, Skindell, Evans, C., Carano, Chandler, Barrett, Hughes, Combs, Driehaus, Aslanides, Flowers, DeGeeter, Hoops, Hood, Strahorn, Peterson, Mitchell, Bulp, Smith, S., McGregor, R., Otterman, Stewart, D., Raussen, Book, Yuko, Patton, S., Fende, Hartnett, Mason, Wolpert, Woodard, Wagoner, Schaffer, Fessler, Calvert, Carmichael, Core, Raga, Schlichter, Smith, G., Koziura, Setzer, Blasdel, Husted.

To enact section 5.2231 of the Revised Code to designate December 1 as "Rosa Parks Day," was taken up for consideration the third time.

The question being, "Shall the bill pass?"

The yeas and nays were taken and resulted - yeas 94, nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were: Representatives

Allen	Aslanides	Barrett	Beatty
Blessing	Boccieri	Book	Brinkman
Brown	Bulp	Buehrer	Calvert
Carano	Carmichael	Cassell	Chandler
Coley	Collier	Core	Daniels
DeBose	DeGeeter	DeWine	Dolan
Domenick	Driehaus	Evans C.	Evans D.
Faber	Fende	Fessler	Flowers
Garrison	Gibbs	Gilb	Hagan
Hartnett	Harwood	Hood	Hoops
Hughes	Key	Kilbane	Koziura
Latta	Law	Martin	Mason
McGregor J.	McGregor R.	Miller	Mitchell
Oelslager	Otterman	Patton S.	Patton T.
Perry	Peterson	Raga	Raussen
Redfern	Reidelbach	Reinhard	Sayre
Schaffer	Schlichter	Schneider	Seaver
Seitz	Setzer	Skindell	Smith G.
Smith S.	Stewart D.	Stewart J.	Sykes

Taylor	Trakas	Uecker	Ujvagi
Wagner	Wagoner	Walcher	Webster
White	Widener	Widowfield	Willamowski
Williams	Wolpert	Woodard	Yates
Yuko			Husted-94.

The bill passed.

Representative Beatty moved to amend the title as follows:

Add the names: "Blessing, Buehrer, Coley, Daniels, DeBose, DeWine, Dolan, Domenick, Evans, D., Faber, Garrison, Hagan, Key, Kilbane, Law, Martin, Patton, T., Sayre, Schneider, Seaver, Stewart, J., Sykes, Taylor, Trakas, Uecker, Walcher, Webster, White, Widener, Willamowski, Williams, Yates."

The motion was agreed to and the title so amended.

The title as amended was agreed to.

On motion of Representative Flowers, the House recessed.

The House met pursuant to recess.

Representative McGregor, J. moved that the House revert to the fifth order of business, being reports of standing and select committees and bills for second consideration.

The motion was agreed to.

#### **REPORTS OF STANDING AND SELECT COMMITTEES AND BILLS FOR SECOND CONSIDERATION**

Representative Healy reported for the Rules and Reference Committee recommending that the following House Bills and Senate Bills be considered for the second time and referred to the following committees for consideration:

**H.B. No. 440 - Representative J. Stewart, et al**

TO REVISE THE DEFINITION OF "AIR QUALITY FACILITY" UNDER THE AIR QUALITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY LAW.

To the committee on Economic Development and Environment

**H.B. No. 441 - Representative C. Evans, et al**

TO PERMIT A MEMBER OF ANY PUBLIC BODY TO BE PRESENT AT A MEETING BY TELECONFERENCE OR INTERACTIVE VIDEO TELECONFERENCE.

To the committee on State Government

**H.B. No. 442 - Representative Dolan, et al**

TO REQUIRE REIMBURSEMENT INSURANCE POLICIES FOR

CONSUMER GOODS SERVICE CONTRACTS, TO REQUIRE GIVEN STATEMENTS TO BE INCLUDED IN WARRANTY REIMBURSEMENT INSURANCE POLICIES AND REIMBURSEMENT INSURANCE POLICIES FOR CONSUMER GOODS CONTRACTS, TO ADD CONDITIONS RELATED TO THE SALE OF VEHICLE PROTECTION PRODUCT WARRANTIES, AND TO APPLY THE OHIO CONSUMER SALES PRACTICES ACT TO THE SALE OF VEHICLE PROTECTION PRODUCT WARRANTIES AND CONSUMER GOODS SERVICE CONTRACTS.

To the committee on Civil and Commercial Law

**H.B. No. 443 - Representative Uecker**

TO REVISE THE STATUTES GOVERNING THE DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES.

To the committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources

**H.B. No. 444 - Representative T. Patton**

TO REQUIRE COUPONS SOLD IN COUPON BOOKS TO DISCLOSE ALL LIMITATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS ON THE COUPON'S REDEMPTION IN TEN-POINT OR LARGER BOLDFACE TYPE ON THE FRONT OF THE COUPON.

To the committee on Commerce and Labor

**Sub. S.B. No. 189 - Senator Grendell, et al**

TO MAKE CHANGES TO THE AGRICULTURAL SEED LAW.

To the committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources

**Am. S.B. No. 206 - Senator Coughlin, et al**

TO PROVIDE FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF THE STATE HIGHWAY PATROL RETIREMENT SYSTEM DEFERRED RETIREMENT OPTION PLAN.

To the committee on Financial Institutions, Real Estate and Securities

**Am. Sub. S.B. No. 236 - Senator Carey, et al**

REGARDING THE ISSUANCE OF OBLIGATIONS TO SUPPORT RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS AND THE DEVELOPMENT OF CERTAIN SITES AND FACILITIES AND TO MAKE AN APPROPRIATION.

To the committee on Finance and Appropriations

JON A. HUSTED  
 JIM CARMICHAEL  
 KEVIN DEWINE  
 TOM RAGA  
 ARLENE J. SETZER  
 SHAWN N. WEBSTER  
 KENNETH A. CARANO  
 JOSEPH KOZIURA

CHARLES E. CALVERT  
 ANTHONY CORE  
 LARRY L. FLOWERS  
 JOHN SCHLICHTER  
 GEOFFREY C. SMITH  
 JOYCE BEATTY  
 TIMOTHY J. DEGEETER  
 ROBERT J. OTTERMAN

Representative McGregor, J. moved that the House and Constitutional Rules requiring bills to be considered by each house on three different days be suspended as to the second consideration of all House Bills and Senate Bills contained in the report of the committee on Rules and Reference.

The motion was agreed to without objection.

The report was agreed to.

Said House Bills and Senate Bills were considered a second time and referred as recommended.

### MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

Representative Healy reported for the Rules and Reference Committee recommending that the following House Resolutions be read by title only and approved:

**H.R. No. 129 - Representative Driehaus**

HONORING THE SETON HIGH SCHOOL VOLLEYBALL TEAM AS THE 2005 DIVISION I STATE CHAMPION.

**H.R. No. 130 - Representative Combs**

HONORING THE STEPHEN T. BADIN HIGH SCHOOL GIRLS SOCCER TEAM AS THE 2005 DIVISION II STATE CHAMPION.

Add the name: Webster

**H.R. No. 131 - Representative Blasdel**

HONORING THE SALEM HIGH SCHOOL BOYS CROSS COUNTRY TEAM ON WINNING THE 2005 DIVISION II STATE CHAMPIONSHIP.

Add the name: Carano

**H.R. No. 132 - Representative Blasdel**

HONORING THE SALEM HIGH SCHOOL GIRLS CROSS COUNTRY TEAM ON WINNING THE 2005 DIVISION II STATE CHAMPIONSHIP.

Add the name: Carano

**H.R. No. 133 - Representatives Blessing, Seitz**

HONORING LASALLE HIGH SCHOOL BOYS CROSS COUNTRY TEAM AS THE 2005 DIVISION I STATE CHAMPION.

/s/ JON A. HUSTED

Jon A. Husted, Chair

Representative McGregor, J. moved that the Rules and Reference Committee Report on resolutions be agreed to and that the resolutions contained therein be approved.

The motion was agreed to.

On motion of Representative McGregor, J., the House recessed.

The House met pursuant to recess.

## Message from the Senate

Mr. Speaker:

I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred in the passage of the following bill:

**Am. Sub. H. B. No. 3** - Representatives DeWine, Trakas, White, Brown, Law, Uecker, Aslanides, Carmichael, Collier, C. Evans, D. Evans, Faber, Flowers, Gibbs, Hagan, Kearns, McGregor, Peterson, Reidelbach, Schaffer, Schlichter, Seaver, Setzer, G. Smith, Widowfield, Willamowski, Wolpert  
Senators Jacobson, Harris, Spada, Hottinger, Coughlin

To amend sections 131.23, 145.38, 303.12, 306.70, 307.791, 322.021, 324.021, 503.162, 504.02, 504.03, 511.28, 511.34, 513.14, 519.12, 745.07, 747.11, 1901.07, 1901.10, 1901.31, 2961.01, 2967.17, 3311.21, 3311.50, 3311.73, 3349.29, 3354.12, 3355.09, 3375.03, 3501.01, 3501.05, 3501.10, 3501.11, 3501.13, 3501.26, 3501.30, 3501.33, 3501.35, 3501.38, 3501.39, 3503.06, 3503.11, 3503.13, 3503.14, 3503.16, 3503.19, 3503.21, 3503.23, 3503.24, 3505.062, 3505.063, 3505.16, 3505.18, 3505.19, 3505.20, 3505.21, 3505.22, 3505.25, 3505.26, 3505.27, 3505.32, 3506.01, 3506.05, 3506.12, 3506.13, 3506.18, 3509.02, 3509.06, 3509.08, 3509.09, 3511.13, 3513.04, 3513.041, 3513.05, 3513.052, 3513.07, 3513.09, 3513.19, 3513.20, 3513.22, 3513.257, 3513.259, 3513.261, 3513.30, 3515.03, 3515.04, 3515.07, 3515.08, 3515.13, 3517.01, 3517.081, 3517.092, 3517.10, 3517.106, 3517.1011, 3517.12, 3517.13, 3517.153, 3517.992, 3519.01, 3519.03, 3519.04, 3519.05, 3523.05, 3599.11, 3599.111, 3599.13, 3599.14, 3599.21, 3599.24, 3599.38, 4301.33, 4301.331, 4301.332, 4301.333, 4301.334, 4305.14, 4504.021, 5705.191, 5705.194, 5705.196, 5705.21, 5705.218, 5705.25, 5705.251, 5705.261, 5705.71, 5739.022, 5748.02, 5748.04, 5748.08, and 6119.18, to enact sections 109.95, 3501.052, 3501.19, 3501.24, 3501.382, 3501.90, 3503.15, 3503.28, 3503.29, 3505.181, 3505.182, 3505.183, 3506.20, 3506.21, 3506.22, 3506.23, 3515.041, 3515.072, 3519.051, and 3519.07, and to repeal section 3503.27 of the Revised Code to revise the Election Law.

As a substitute bill with the following additional amendments, in which the concurrence of the House is requested:

Delete lines 74 through 81

In line 609, after "Address" insert "of circulator's permanent residence in this state"

In line 657, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"; reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"

In line 658, reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 699, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"; reinsert "for";

after "four" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive"

In line 700, reinsert "weeks"

In line 731, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"; reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 763, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"; reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 792, delete "twice"

In line 793, after "township" insert "once a week"; reinsert "for"; after "~~three~~" insert "two"

In line 794, reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 828, delete "twice"

In line 829, after "township" insert "once a week"; reinsert "for"; after "~~three~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 867, delete "twice"; after "township" insert "once a week"; reinsert "for"

In line 868, after "~~three~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 935, reinsert "once a "; delete "twice during the"; reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 1018, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice"

In line 1019, delete "during the"; reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 1066, reinsert "once a"

In line 1067, delete "twice during the"; reinsert "for"; after "three" insert "two consecutive"; reinsert "weeks"

In line 1290, after "Address" insert "of circulator's permanent residence in this state"

In line 1339, reinsert "once a week for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive weeks"; delete "twice"

In line 1364, delete "twice"

In line 1365, strike through the comma; reinsert "once a week for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive"

In line 1366, reinsert "weeks prior to"; after "~~such~~" insert "the"; reinsert "election,"

In line 2204, reinsert "once"; delete "twice"

In line 2205, delete "during the" and insert "a"; reinsert "for"; after "~~three~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 2338, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"; reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive"

In line 2339, reinsert "weeks"

In line 2411, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"

In line 2412, reinsert "for"; after "~~three~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 2465, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"; reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"

In line 2466, reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 2541, reinsert "once"; delete "twice during the"; and insert "a"; reinsert "for"; after "~~three~~" insert "two consecutive"; reinsert "weeks"

In line 2609, reinsert "once"; delete "twice during the" and insert "a"; reinsert "for"; after "~~three~~" insert "two consecutive"; reinsert "weeks"

In line 2695, after "Address" insert "of circulator's permanent residence in this state"

In line 2920, after "pollbook" insert ", except for a driver's license or a state identification card issued under section 4507.50 of the Revised Code, which may show either the current or former address of the individual to whom it was issued, regardless of whether that address conforms to the address in the poll list or signature pollbook"

In line 2934, delete "within twenty-four hours" and insert "as soon as is practicable"; after "issued" insert ", but not later than the close of business on the same day as a directive or advisory is issued"

In line 3052, after "conference" insert "or teleconference"

In line 3058, after "conference" insert "or teleconference"

In line 3059, after "conference" insert "or teleconference"

In line 3353, delete "that"

Delete lines 3354 through 3362 and insert "stating as follows:

"Voters must bring identification to the polls in order to verify identity. Identification may include a current and valid photo identification, or a copy of a current utility bill, bank statement, government check, paycheck, or other government document, other than this reminder, that shows the voter's name and current address. Voters who do not provide one of these documents will still be able to vote by providing the last four digits of the voter's social security number and by casting a provisional ballot. Voters who do not have any of the above forms of identification, including a social security number, will still be able to vote by signing an affirmation swearing to the voter's identity under penalty of election falsification and by casting a provisional ballot."

In line 3577, delete the first "and" and insert ", the"; after "address" insert "of the circulator's permanent residence."

In line 3833, reinsert everything after "election"

In line 3834, reinsert "any nominating"; reinsert "or recall petition,"

In line 3839, delete the first underlined comma and insert "or"; delete ", declaration of candidacy, nominating, or"

In line 3840, delete "recall"

In line 3874, delete the underline comma and insert "or"

In line 3875, delete everything after "referendum"

In line 4015, after "document" insert ", other than a notice of an election mailed by a board of elections under section 3501.19 of the Revised Code or a notice of voter registration mailed by a board of elections under section 3503.19 of the Revised Code."

In line 4148, after "(1)" insert "(a)"; strike through "or"

Strike through line 4149

In line 4150, strike through "precinct"

In line 4151, strike through "or"

In line 4152, strike through everything before "with"

In line 4155, strike through everything after "residence"

In line 4156, strike through "appropriate"; after the comma insert "showing identification in the form of a current and valid photo identification or a copy of a current utility bill, bank statement, government check, paycheck, or other government document, other than a notice of an election mailed by a board of elections under section 3501.19 of the Revised Code or a notice of voter registration mailed by a board of elections under section 3503.19 of the Revised Code, that shows the name and current address of the elector."; delete "provisional"; delete "under section"

In line 4157, delete "3505.181 of the Revised Code"; after the period insert "If the elector provides either a driver's license or a state identification card issued under section 4507.50 of the Revised Code that does not contain the elector's current residence address, the elector shall provide the last four digits of the elector's driver's license number or state identification card number, and the precinct election official shall mark the poll list or signature pollbook to indicate that the elector has provided a driver's license or state identification card number with a former address and record the last four digits of the elector's driver's license number or state identification card number."

(b) Any registered elector who changes the name of that registered elector and remains within a precinct on or prior to the day of a general, primary,

or special election and has not filed a notice of change of name with the board of elections may vote in that election by going to that registered elector's assigned polling place, completing and signing a notice of a change of name, and casting a provisional ballot under section 3505.181 of the Revised Code."

In line 4420, delete "(C)(2)" and insert "(B)(2)(c)"; after the first "of" insert "this"; delete "3599.11 of the"

In line 4421, delete "Revised Code"

In line 4422, delete "the" and insert "any"

Delete line 4423

In line 4424, delete everything before the underlined period and insert "or the office of the secretary of state"

Between lines 4424 and 4425, insert:

"(c) A person who receives compensation for registering a voter shall return any registration form entrusted to that person by an applicant to any board of elections or to the office of the secretary of state.

(d) If a board of elections or the office of the secretary of state receives a registration form under division (B)(2)(b) or (c) of this section before the thirtieth day before an election, the board or the office of the secretary of state, as applicable, shall forward the registration to the board of elections of the county in which the applicant is seeking to register to vote within ten days after receiving the application. If a board of elections or the office of the secretary of state receives a registration form under division (B)(2)(b) or (c) of this section on or after the thirtieth day before an election, the board or the office of the secretary of state, as applicable, shall forward the registration to the board of elections of the county in which the applicant is seeking to register to vote within thirty days after that election."

In line 4434, after "vote" insert "~~The~~"

In line 4435, delete everything after "type"

Delete lines 4436 through 4444 and insert "as follows:

"Voters must bring identification to the polls in order to verify identity. Identification may include a current and valid photo identification, or a copy of a current utility bill, bank statement, government check, paycheck, or other government document, other than this notification or a notification of an election mailed by a board of elections, that shows the voter's name and current address. Voters who do not provide one of these documents will still be able to vote by providing the last four digits of the voter's social security number and by casting a provisional ballot. Voters who do not have any of the above forms of identification, including a social security number, will still be able to vote by signing an affirmation swearing to the voter's identity under penalty of election falsification and by casting a provisional ballot."

In line 4704, delete everything after "(6)"

Delete lines 4705 through 4713 and insert "A notice, which shall be written in bold type, stating as follows:

"Voters must bring identification to the polls in order to verify identity. Identification may include a current and valid photo identification, or a copy of a current utility bill, bank statement, government check, paycheck, or other government document, other than a notice of an election or a voter registration notification sent by a board of elections, that shows the voter's name and current address. Voters who do not provide one of these documents will still be able to vote by providing the last four digits of the voter's social security number and by casting a provisional ballot. Voters who do not have any of the above forms of identification, including a social security number, will still be able to vote by signing an affirmation swearing to the voter's identity under penalty of election falsification and by casting a provisional ballot."

In line 4821, delete "If" and insert ", who then shall file with the secretary of state in accordance with division (A) of section 3519.01 of the Revised Code a verified copy of the proposed law or constitutional amendment together with its summary and the attorney general's certification of it.

If"

In line 4826, after the underlined period insert "If the board so divides an initiative petition and so certifies its approval to the attorney general, the petitioners shall resubmit to the attorney general appropriate summaries for each of the individual petitions arising from the board's division of the initiative petition, and the attorney general then shall review the resubmissions as provided in division (A) of section 3519.01 of the Revised Code."

In line 4835, strike through "eighty" and insert "seventy-five"

In line 4910, after "document" insert ", other than a notice of an election mailed by a board of elections under section 3501.19 of the Revised Code or a notice of voter registration mailed by a board of elections under section 3503.19 of the Revised Code,"; after the underlined period insert "If the elector provides either a driver's license or a state identification card issued under section 4507.50 of the Revised Code that does not contain the elector's current residence address, the elector shall provide the last four digits of the elector's driver's license number or state identification card number, and the precinct election official shall mark the poll list or signature pollbook to indicate that the elector has provided a driver's license or state identification card number with a former address and record the last four digits of the elector's driver's license number or state identification card number."

In line 4911, after "elector" insert "has but"

In line 4913, after the underlined comma insert "but has a social security number."

In line 4919, after "elector" insert "has but"

In line 4921, delete "or" and insert "and if the elector has a social security number but is unable"

In line 4951, delete everything after "elector"

In line 4952, delete everything before the underlined comma and insert "has but declines to provide to the precinct election officials any of the forms of identification required under division (A)(1) of this section or the elector has a social security number but declines to provide to the precinct election officials the last four digits of the elector's social security number"

In line 5010, after "who" insert "has a social security number and"

In line 5014, after "who" insert "has but"

In line 5016, delete "or" and insert "and who has a social security number but is unable"

In line 5018, delete the underlined period and insert an underlined semicolon

In line 5048, delete "moves within a precinct."

In line 5073, delete everything after "who"

Delete lines 5074 and 5075

In line 5076, delete "address" and insert "has but declines to provide to the precinct election officials any of the forms of identification required under division (A)(1) of section 3501.18 of the Revised Code or who has a social security number but declines to provide to the precinct election officials the last four digits of the individual's social security number"

In line 5097, delete everything after the underlined period

Delete lines 5098 through 5104

In line 5136, delete ", in the form of a current"

Delete line 5137

In line 5138, delete "address instead of current address."

In line 5140, after "document" insert ", other than a notice of an election mailed by a board of elections under section 3501.19 of the Revised Code or a notice of voter registration mailed by a board of elections under section 3503.19 of the Revised Code."

In line 5158, delete "or"; after "(13)" insert ", or (14)"

In line 5169, delete "or"; after "(13)" insert ", or (14)"

In line 5174, delete "or" and insert an underlined comma; after "(13)" insert ", or (14)"

In line 5176, delete "either" and insert "any"

In line 5181, after "document" insert ", other than a notice of an election mailed by a board of elections under section 3501.19 of the Revised Code or a notice of voter registration mailed by a board of elections under section 3503.19 of the Revised Code,"

In line 5183, after "number" insert ";

(iii) In the case of a provisional ballot executed pursuant to division (A)(13) of this section, execute an affirmation as permitted under division (A)(4) of section 3505.18 of the Revised Code"

In line 5283f, after "document" insert ", other than a notice of an election mailed by a board of elections under section 3501.19 of the Revised Code or a notice of voter registration mailed by a board of elections under section 3503.19 of the Revised Code,"

In line 5292c, after "document" insert ", other than a notice of an election mailed by a board of elections under section 3501.19 of the Revised Code or a notice of voter registration mailed by a board of elections under section 3503.19 of the Revised Code,"

In line 5314, delete "but" and insert ", other than a driver's license or a state identification card,"

In line 5319, after "document" insert ", other than a notice of an election mailed by a board of elections under section 3501.19 of the Revised Code or a notice of voter registration mailed by a board of elections under section 3503.19 of the Revised Code,"

In line 5322, delete "did" and insert "is"; after "not" insert "able to"

In line 5325, after "document" insert ", other than a notice of an election mailed by a board of elections under section 3501.19 of the Revised Code or a notice of voter registration mailed by a board of elections under section 3503.19 of the Revised Code,"

In line 5332, after "document" insert ", other than a notice of an election mailed by a board of elections under section 3501.19 of the Revised Code or a notice of voter registration mailed by a board of elections under section 3503.19 of the Revised Code,"; after "address" insert "but does have one of these forms of identification"

Between lines 5343 and 5344, insert:

"..... The provisional voter does not have a current and valid photo identification, a copy of a current utility bill, bank statement, government check, paycheck, or other government document with the voter's name and current address, or a social security number, and has declined to execute an affirmation."

In line 5344, delete "did not" and insert "declined to"

In line 5348, delete "and did not"

In line 5349, delete "execute an affirmation" and insert "but does have one of these forms of identification or a social security number"

In line 5457, after "document" insert ", other than a notice of an election mailed by a board of elections under section 3501.19 of the Revised Code or a notice of voter registration mailed by a board of elections under section 3503.19 of the Revised Code."

In line 6383, after "with" insert "the formula set forth in"

In line 7539, delete "of circulator" and insert "of circulator's permanent residence in this state"

In line 8040, after "Address" insert "of circulator's permanent residence in this state"

In line 8618, after "dollars" insert "or less"

In line 9616, reinsert "The"; delete the balance of the line

In line 9617, delete "section, the"

In line 9621, delete everything after "(2)" and insert "In reporting the contribution, the recipient of the contribution shall be entitled to conclusively rely upon the information provided by the partnership or other unincorporated business, provided that the information includes one of the following:

(a) The name of each partner, owner, or member as of the date of the contribution or contributions, and a statement that the total contributions are to be allocated equally among all of the partners, owners, or members; or

(b) The name of each partner, owner, or member as of the date of the contribution or contributions who is participating in the contribution or contributions, and a statement that the contribution or contributions are to be allocated to those individuals in accordance with the information provided by the partnership or other unincorporated business to the recipient of the contribution."

Delete lines 9622 through 9637

In line 9640, delete "or (2)"

In line 9646, delete "or (2)"; delete ", as applicable" and insert "together with the information provided under division (I)(2) of this section"

In line 9648, reinsert "solely in the name of the"

In line 9649, reinsert "partnership or other unincorporated business"; delete the balance of the line

Delete line 9650

In line 9651, delete everything before the period

In line 11116, reinsert the stricken language

In line 11117, delete "violates"

In line 11122, reinsert "accepts a"

In line 11123, reinsert "contribution in violation of"; delete "violates"

In line 11239, delete everything after the period

Delete lines 11240 through 11243

In line 11244, delete everything before "If" and insert "Within ten days after the receipt of the written petition and the summary of it, the attorney general shall conduct an examination of the summary."

In line 11247, after "certify" insert "and then forward the submitted petition to the Ohio ballot board for its approval under division (A) of section 3505.062 of the Revised Code"; strike through "A" and insert "If the Ohio ballot board returns the submitted petition to the attorney general with its certification as described in that division, the attorney general shall then file with the secretary of state a"

In line 11248, strike through the comma; strike through the first "the" and insert "its"

In line 11249, strike through ", shall then be filed with the"

In line 11250, strike through "secretary of state"

Between lines 11250 and 11251, insert:

"Whenever the Ohio ballot board divides an initiative petition into individual petitions containing only proposed law or constitutional amendment under division (A) of section 3505.062 of the Revised Code resulting in the need for the petitioners to resubmit to the attorney general appropriate summaries for each of the individual petitions arising from the board's division of the initiative petition, the attorney general shall review the resubmitted summaries, within ten days after their receipt, to determine if they are a fair and truthful statement of the respective proposed laws or constitutional amendments and, if so, certify them. These resubmissions shall contain no new explanations or arguments. Then, the attorney general shall file with the secretary of state a verified copy of each of the proposed laws or constitutional amendments together with their respective summaries and the attorney general's certification of each."

In line 11570, strike through "the" and insert "any"

In line 11571, delete everything after "elections"

In line 11572, delete everything after "or"

Delete line 11573

Delete lines 11572 and 11573

In line 11574, delete "before the election."

In line 11574, delete "before the election, to a designated agency in that county" and insert "or the office of the secretary of state"

In line 11577, after "earlier" insert ", unless the registration form is received by the person within twenty-four hours of the thirtieth day before the election, in which case the person shall return the registration form to the board of elections or the office of the secretary of state within ten days of its receipt"

In line 11584, delete "the" and insert "any"; delete "of"

Delete line 11585

In line 11586, delete everything before the underlined period and insert "or the office of the secretary of state"

In line 11591, delete the first "the" and insert "any"; delete "of the county"

In line 11592, delete everything before "within" and insert "or the office of the secretary of state"

In line 11593, delete ", unless"

Delete line 11594

In line 11595, delete everything before "on"

In line 11596, after "earlier" insert ", unless the registration form is received by the person within twenty-four hours of the thirtieth day before the election, in which case the person shall return the registration form to the board of elections or the office of the secretary of state within ten days of its receipt"

In line 11601, delete "the" and insert "any"; delete the second "of"

In line 11602, delete everything before the underlined period and insert "or the office of the secretary of state"

In line 12446, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"; reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 12509, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"; reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 12622, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"; reinsert "for"; after "~~three~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive"

In line 12623, reinsert "weeks"

In line 12656, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"; reinsert "for"; after "~~three~~" insert "two"

In line 12657, reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 12736, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"; reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"

In line 12737, reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 12863, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"

In line 12864, reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 13021, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"; reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 13101, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"; reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"

In line 13102, reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 13262, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"; reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"

In line 13263, reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 13309, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"

In line 13310, reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 13360, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"; reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"

In line 13361, reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 13519, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"

In line 13520, reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 13553, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"

In line 13554, reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 13724, reinsert "once a"

In line 13725, delete "twice during the"; reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 13826, reinsert "once a"; delete "twice during the"; reinsert "for"; after "~~four~~" insert "two"; reinsert "consecutive weeks"

In line 13903, delete "division (B)(8) of section"

In line 13904, delete "3517.01 and"

In line 13910, after "**6.**" insert "The amendments made to section 3503.06 of the Revised Code are intended to clarify that Ohio law requires the circulators of initiative and referendum petitions to be residents of this state. Those amendments shall not be construed to mean that Ohio law did not prior to the effective date of this act require circulators to be residents of this state."

**Section 7."**

Attest: David A. Battocletti,  
Clerk.

The Senate amendments were laid over under the Rule.

Message from the Senate

Mr. Speaker:

I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred in the passage of the following bill:

**Sub. H. B. No. 139** - Representatives Harwood, Carano, Patton, S., Law, Williams, Domenick, Chandler, Wolpert, Mitchell, Beatty, Boccieri, Book, Cassell, Distel, Evans, C., Fende, Flowers, Hughes, Miller, Oelslager, Otterman, Patton, T., Skindell, Stewart, J., Wagoner, Yuko Senators Dann, Hagan, Carey, Harris, Prentiss, Roberts, Schuring, Zurz, Fedor, Stivers, Goodman, Wilson, Gardner, Armbruster, Spada

To enact section 3356.10 and to repeal section 3356.10 of the Revised Code five years after the effective date of this act to authorize conveyances during a five-year period of certain parcels of real estate held for the use and benefit of Youngstown State University, to authorize the conveyance to Liberty Township of all of the state's right, title, and interest in certain real estate located in Trumbull County, to authorize the conveyance of state-owned real estate in Wayne County to a purchaser to be determined, to authorize the conveyance of state-owned real estate in Wayne County to the Wayne County Fire Rescue Association, to amend Section 6 of Am. Sub. S.B. 147 of the 126th General Assembly to authorize the conveyance of state-owned real estate in Franklin County to the Columbus Board of Education, and to declare an emergency.

As a substitute bill, in which the concurrence of the House is requested.

Attest: David A. Battocletti,  
Clerk.

The Senate amendments were laid over under the Rule.

Message from the Senate

Mr. Speaker:

I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has

agreed to the report of the Committee of Conference on matters of difference between the two houses on:

**Sub. H. B. No. 107** - Representative Setzer - et al.

Attest:

David A. Battocletti,  
Clerk.

On motion of Representative Coley, the House adjourned until Wednesday, December 14, 2005 at 1:30 o'clock p.m.

Attest:

LAURA P. CLEMENS,  
Clerk.